
Since 1918 

Board of Directors 

ROBERT E. ALVARADO 
Division  1 

JOE ESTES 
Division 2 

MARCO  HENRIQUEZ 
Division 3 

KATHY MAC LAREN 
Division 4 

VINCENT DINO 
Division 5 

ALESHIRE & WYNDER LLP 
Attorneys 

PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
2029 East Avenue Q • Palmdale, California 93550 •  Telephone  (661) 947-411 1 

Fax (661) 947-8604 
www.palmdalewater.org 

Facebook: palmdalewaterdistrict 
Twitter: @palmdaleH20 

Providing high quality water to our current and future customers at a reasonable cost. 

March 17, 2016 

Agenda for Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Directors of the Palmdale Water District 

to be held at the District’s office at 2029 East Avenue Q, Palmdale 
Wednesday, March 23, 2016 

7:00 p.m. 

NOTE: To comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act, to participate in any Board meeting 
please contact Dawn Deans at 661-947-4111 x1003 at least 48 hours prior to a Board meeting to 
inform us of your needs and to determine if accommodation is feasible. 

Agenda item materials, as well as materials related to agenda items submitted after distribution 
of the agenda packets, are available for public review at the District’s office located at 2029 East 
Avenue Q, Palmdale (Government Code Section 54957.5).  Please call Dawn Deans at 661-947-
4111 x1003 for public review of materials. 

PUBLIC COMMENT GUIDELINES:  The prescribed time limit per speaker is three-
minutes.  Please refrain from public displays or outbursts such as unsolicited applause, 
comments, or cheering.  Any disruptive activities that substantially interfere with the ability 
of the District to carry out its meeting will not be permitted and offenders will be requested 
to leave the meeting. (PWD Rules and Regulations, Appendix DD, Sec. IV.A.) 
Each item on the agenda shall be deemed to include any appropriate motion, resolution, or 
ordinance to take action on any item. 

1) Pledge of Allegiance.

2) Roll Call.

3) Adoption of Agenda.

4) Public comments for non-agenda items.

5) Presentations:

http://www.palmdalewater.org/


BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT    -2- March 17, 2016 

5.1) Palmdale Water District Employees Care – Easter meals. (PIO/Conservation 
Director McNutt) 

5.2) Drought Report-Review of “Water Conservation and Reduction in Water Demand 
Efforts Report as of February, 2016.” (PIO/Conservation Director McNutt)  

5.3) Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project. (Assistant 
General Manager Knudson) 

6) Action Items - Consent Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item on the Consent Calendar as the Consent Calendar is considered
collectively by the Board of Directors prior to action being taken.)

6.1) Approval of minutes of regular meeting held March 9, 2016.

6.2) Approval of minutes of Ad Hoc Committee meeting held June 4, 2014.

6.3) Approval of minutes of Outreach Committee meeting held September 10, 2015.

6.4) Approval of minutes of Water Supply & Reliability Committee meeting held
October 5, 2015. 

6.5) Approval of minutes of Informational Meeting of the Outreach Committee held 
October 15, 2015. 

6.6) Payment of bills for March 23, 2016. 

6.7) Approve absence of Director Estes from March 9, 2016 meeting due to family 
obligation.  

7) Action Items – Action Calendar (The public shall have an opportunity to comment on
any action item as each item is considered by the Board of Directors prior to action being
taken.)

7.1) Consideration and possible action on additional costs associated with completion
of front office space remodel. ($7,775.00 – Budgeted – Project Manager 
Thompson) 

7.2) Consideration and possible action on authorization of the following conferences, 
seminars, and training sessions for Board and staff attendance within budget 
amounts previously approved in the 2016 Budget:  

a) Central Basin Municipal Water District Water Education Tour to be held
April 8, 2016 in Commerce.

b) The Copywriter’s Workshop to be held June 2 – 3, 2016 in Pasadena.

8) Information Items:

8.1) Reports of Directors:

a) Meetings/General Report.

b) Standing Committee/Assignment Reports (Chair):

1) Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT                      -3-                                        March 17, 2016 
 
 
 8.2) Report of General Manager.  

  a) March, 2016 written report of activities through February, 2016. 

 8.3) Report of General Counsel. 

9) Public comments on closed session agenda matters. 

10) Break prior to closed session. 

11) Closed session under: 

11.1) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be 
held, pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with Special 
Litigation Counsel regarding pending litigation to which the District is a party.  
The title of such litigation is as follows: Antelope Valley Ground Water Cases. 

  11.2) Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation: A closed session will be held, 
pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(1), to confer with District General 
Counsel regarding pending litigation to which the District is a party.  The title of 
such litigation is as follows: Palmdale Water District v. Lagerlof, et al, Los Angeles 
County Superior Court Case No. BC 605450.  

12) Public report of any action taken in closed session. 

13) Board members' requests for future agenda items. 

14) Adjournment. 
 
 

 
DENNIS D. LaMOREAUX,  
General Manager 
 
DDL/dd 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PALMDALE	WATER	DISTRICT	
CARES

Tuesday,	March	1,	2016		

To	

Wednesday,	March	23,	2016		

Attention  all  employees,  Please  assist  PWD  in 
feeding  two  families  in  need  this  Easter.    The 
Chavez family, (family of five) and the Robinson 
family, (single mother of six) that need help this 
Easter.   The District will be accepting donations 
from  the  1st  to  the  23rd  until  6:30pm.  All 
donations will be presented to the families at the 
Board  Meeting  on  March  23rdplease  help  us 
make things a little easier for these two families.
Needed supplies: 

 Canned goods

 Candy/Small toys for kids

 Fresh Vegetables  (can be accepted on the
last day)

 Easter Baskets etc.…
Perishable food Items can be donated on the last 
day.  Please email Mike McNutt or Jeleve Bishop 
for additional details.   
         (Total of 4 girls and 5 boys ages 4‐12years) 
Please drop off all donations in Mike McNutt’s office. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.1



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  March 17, 2016 March 23, 2016 
TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 
FROM: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2 – DROUGHT REORT-REVIEW OF “WATER 
CONSERVATION AND REDUCTION IN WATER DEMAND EFFORTS AS 
OF FEBRUARY, 2016.” 

Information on this item will be distributed at the Board meeting. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.2



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE:  March 17, 2016 March 23, 2016 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Matthew Knudson, Assistant General Manager 
VIA: Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3 – PRESENTATION AND UPDATE ON THE 
PALMDALE REGIONAL GROUNDWATER RECHARGE AND RECOVERY 
PROJECT 

The Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project was accepted as one of the projects 
presented at the recent WateReuse Annual Conference. Attached is a copy of the presentation presented by 
District staff and Kennedy/Jenks Consultants at the WateReuse Conference held March 13 – 15, 2016 in 
Santa Rosa, CA. The presentation and project was well received by the attendees, and there were several 
project supporters in the audience including representatives from the Los Angeles County Sanitation District, 
members from our independent advisory committee (Blue Ribbon Panel), and the National Water Research 
Institute. 

At the Board meeting, staff will provide the Board with a brief presentation and update on the proposed 
project to keep the Board and public informed on the recent status and minor changes to the proposed 
project. 

Supporting Documents:  

 Copy of the presentation presented by District staff and Kennedy/Jenks Consultants at the recent
WateReuse Conference.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5.3



Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery Project
Progress Update

Palmdale Water District Board of Directors Meeting
March 23, 2016



Presentation Agenda

Project Purpose

Long-Term Water Supply Strategy

Project Description

Schedule

What’s Worked & Interesting Challenges



Water Supplies

State Water 
Project

50%

Local Surface 
Water
12%

Groundwater
38%

Variable 
Availability

Over-drafted 
Basin



Long-term Water Supply Strategy

Status Quo

Conjunctive Use 
Water Bank

Potable Reuse 
Water Bank

45,000 AFY 
of Table A $$$
9,000 AFY 
of Table A $$
0 AFY of 
Table A $



Achieve Multiple Benefits

Meet Future Demand Needs

Diversify Water Supply Portfolio

Maximize SWP Water Supply

Increase Reliability

Provide More Local Control



Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery

8,000-16,000 AFY Total Recharge
2,000-7,000 AFY 
Recycled Water

1,690 AFY 
Underflow

4,000-9,000 AFY 
SWP Surface Water

Surface Spreading GRRP



Favorable Conditions

Large, over-drafted basin

Close access to recycled water

Ample undeveloped land

Available diluent water



Water Supply Projection

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

35,000

40,000

45,000

AF
Y

Groundwater

Water Treatment Plant

Purple Pipe Distribution

PRGRRP Extracted Water

Water Demand

Phase 1a Phase 1b Phase 2



Project Schematic

PWD Service Area

SWP East Branch

SWP Recharge 
Line

RW Recharge Line

Distribution LinePalmdale 
WRP

Ex 48” RW Line

Recharge Basins

GW Wells

Pump
Back

Phase 1A

Phase 1B
Phase 2



Phasing Summary

Phase 1A
2019-2038

2 recharge basins

4 wells

Pipelines

Phase 1B
2039-2058

1 recharge basin

2 wells

Storage tank

Pump station

Phase 2
2059-2068

1 recharge basin

2 wells



Facilities Map



Diluent Sources of Water

Underflow
• 1,690 AFY

SWP Surface Water
• 31,300 AFY Table A Amount
• 62% Long-Term Average Availability



Recharge Schedule

Recycled 
Water
20%

Underflow
17%SWP Surface 

Water
63%

Recycled 
Water
40%

Underflow
17%

SWP Surface 
Water
43%

Recycled 
Water
40%

Underflow
9%

SWP Surface 
Water
51%

10,000 AFY 10,000 AFY 16,500 AFY

Initial Project 7-20 Years Later 20+ Years



Achieving Removal/Inactivation Credits 

Aquifer
Retention Time

12

10

10

Surface Spreading 
Groundwater Recharge

& Recovery

Virus

Giardia

Crypto

12

10

10

Virus

Giardia

Crypto

Secondary 
Treatment

1.9

Tertiary 
Treatment

4.1 18

10

10



Facility Sizes

30” SWP 
Line

24” RW 
Turnout

80-acre 
Recharge 

Basins

1,200 gpm
Wells

1,600 hp
Pump 

Station

30” 
Distribution 

Line



Project Schedule

Feasibility 
Study

Preliminary 
Design CEQA

Title 22 
Report & 

Permitting

Basin 
Testing & 
Sampling

Final Design 
& 

Construction

2014-2015

2015 2015-2016

2016 2016-2017

2017-2019



2016-2017 Work Plan

Test Recharge Basin Monitoring Well

Water Quality 
Sampling Soil Column Testing

Final Design 
(2017-18)

Construction 
(2018-19)

Begin Operation 
(2019)



What’s Worked

Independent 
Advisory Panel

Early Public 
Engagement

Stakeholder 
Involvement

Tapping into Project 
Partners’ Resources



Interesting Challenges

High 
NDMA in 
Recycled 
Water

Creating 
Regional 
Alliances

Funding 
Strategy

Project 
Phasing

Predicting 
the Future



Multiple Benefits

Conjunctive Use of SWP Water

Utilize New, Reliable Water Supply

Local Control

Benefits Entire Region



Questions?



P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: March 15, 2016    March 23, 2015 
TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS Board Meeting
FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.7 – APPROVE ABSENCE OF DIRECTOR ESTES 
FROM MARCH 9, 2016 MEETING DUE TO FAMILY OBLIGATION 

Director Estes was absent from the March 9, 2016 Board Meeting. Agenda Item 
No. 6.7 has been placed on the Consent Calendar to excuse this absence pursuant to 
Section 4.07.2 of the District’s Rules and Regulations which states, “The Board shall 
excuse absences by approving such absences pursuant to the Consent Calendar at the next 
regular Board meeting.”  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.7



P A L M D A L E    
W A T E R   D I S T R I C T 

B O A R D   M E M O R A N D U M 

DATE: March 15, 2016        March 23, 2016 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS        Board Meeting 

FROM: Mr. Peter Thompson, Project Manager 

VIA: Mr. James Riley, Engineering/Grant Manager 

Mr. Matthew Knudson, Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1 - CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ON 
ADDITIONAL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH COMPLETION OF FRONT 
OFFICE SPACE REMODEL.  

Recommendation: 

Staff recommends approval of additional costs associated with the work necessary to complete the front 
office space remodel. 

Financial Impact: 

Original proposal costs: $ 4,241.00 

Proposed costs to complete cubicles: $ 6,974.78 
Estimated costs to complete counter face: $ 800.00 

Total remodel Price: $ 12,015.78 

This additional cost is recommended as a temporary alternative until such time as financing in an 
approximate amount of $1,000,000.00 is available to construct a full remodel in the front office.  

Background:  

Staff met with Rothman Business Interiors on several occasions and conveyed the scope of work prior to 
receiving Rothman’s proposal. The scope of work involved utilizing panels from the existing six cubicles to 
create nine cubicles as well as rearranging front counter faces to create adequate knee space for staff working 
the counter. Rothman’s proposal for the work in the amount of $4,241.00 was accepted by the Board on 
January 13, 2016.  The work has been completed but does not appear finished or uniform due to the lack of 
panels and trim pieces available to complete the cubicles and due to open voids in the counter faces resulting 
from the work. Cubicle panels and additional trim pieces should be added to achieve a uniform and finished 
appearance. Existing drawers and/or blank cabinet facing should be utilized to fill in the counter face voids.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.1



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT 
VIA: Mr. James Riley, Engineering/Grant Manager 

Mr. Matthew Knudson, Assistant General Manager 
Mr. Dennis LaMoreaux, General Manager -2- March 16, 2016 

Strategic Plan Initiative: 

Strategic Initiative No. 6 – Customer Care and Advocacy 

Supporting Documents:  

 Rothman Business Interiors proposal to complete front office cubicles















CENTRAL BASIN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
WATER EDUCATION TOUR 

April 8, 2016 
Commerce 

NAME: 

ADVANCE REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 

MEALS:        YES SPOUSE:        YES  SPOUSES' TOUR:        YES 
      NO        NO        NO 

DEPARTMENTAL TRAVEL BUDGET:  

REGISTRATION: TRAVEL: 
TOTAL REMAINING BALANCE: 

PROPOSED EXPENSES: Registration:  
Transportation: 
Meals:* 
Miscellaneous: 
TOTAL: 

*DIRECTORS: Expenses are outlined in Section 4.06.1 of the District’s Rules and Regulations.
*FOR STAFF: Meal limitations are outlined on pages 30 and 31 of the District’s Employee Manual.

Please review these limitations. 

HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS:       YES        NO  REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 
ARRIVAL DATE/TIME:       DEPARTURE DATE/TIME: 

TYPE OF ACCOMMODATIONS: SINGLE (1 PERSON) 
DOUBLE (2 PEOPLE) 
(2 PEOPLE/2 BEDS)

AIRLINE RESERVATIONS:        YES       NO 

DEPART FROM          on    at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)           (time) 

RETURN FROM     on                       at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)          (time) 

SUPERVISOR APPROVAL: DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.2





THE COPYWRITER’S WORKSHOP 
June 2 - 3, 2016 

Pasadena 

NAME: 

ADVANCE REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 30 DAYS PRIOR TO EVENT 

MEALS:        YES SPOUSE:        YES  SPOUSES' TOUR:        YES 
      NO        NO        NO 

DEPARTMENTAL TRAVEL BUDGET:  

REGISTRATION: TRAVEL: 
TOTAL REMAINING BALANCE: 

PROPOSED EXPENSES: Registration:  
Transportation: 
Meals:* 
Miscellaneous: 
TOTAL: 

*DIRECTORS: Expenses are outlined in Section 4.06.1 of the District’s Rules and Regulations.
*FOR STAFF: Meal limitations are outlined on pages 30 and 31 of the District’s Employee Manual.

Please review these limitations. 

HOTEL ACCOMMODATIONS:       YES        NO  REGISTRATION DEADLINE: 
ARRIVAL DATE/TIME:       DEPARTURE DATE/TIME: 

TYPE OF ACCOMMODATIONS: SINGLE (1 PERSON) 
DOUBLE (2 PEOPLE) 
(2 PEOPLE/2 BEDS)

AIRLINE RESERVATIONS:        YES       NO 

DEPART FROM          on    at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)           (time) 

RETURN FROM     on                       at AM/PM 
(airport) (date)          (time) 

SUPERVISOR APPROVAL: DATE: 















AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.1











P A L M D A L E  W A T E R  D I S T R I C T

B O A R D  M E M O R A N D U M  

DATE: March 16, 2016 March 23, 2016 

TO: BOARD OF DIRECTORS   Board Meeting 
FROM: Mr. Dennis D. LaMoreaux, General Manager 

RE: AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2 – March, 2016 General Manager Report 

The following is the March report to the Board of activities through February, 2016.  It is 
organized to follow the District’s six strategic initiatives adopted for 2016 and is intended to provide 
a general update on the month’s activities.  A summary of the initiatives is as follows: 

Water Resource Reliability 

2015 Urban Water Management Plan, drought response 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery Project 
Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project  
Recycled water allocation and use 

Organizational Excellence 

Maintain formal management/supervisor training and development program 
Maintain competitive compensation and benefits package 
Employee wellness program; Succession planning 
Board/staff events to develop innovative ideas and awards 

Systems Efficiency

Water system Master Plan update and related EIR 
Reinvestment in aging infrastructure 
Investment, implementation, and training plan for new technology 
Computerized maintenance management software (CMMS) 

Financial Health and Stability   (Interim icon) 

Pursue Federal and State funding opportunities 
Sustainable and balanced rate structure 
Maintain adequate reserve levels 
Maintain high level bond rating 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8.2



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

2 
 

Regional Leadership 

Create a regional best practices Antelope Valley partnership 
Enhance community partnerships and expand school programs in water education 
Emphasize the importance and long history of the District as a community asset 
Continue to evaluate District internship needs 

 

Customer Care and Advocacy     

Customer Care accessibility through automation 
Evaluate, develop, and market additional payment options 
Improve customer account management tools 
Enhance customer experience through assessment of infrastructure, processes, and 
policies to maximize the customer care experience 

 

This report also includes charts that show the effects of the District’s efforts in several areas.  
They are now organized within each strategic initiative and include status in complying with the State 
Water Resources Control Board’s (SWRCB) conservation mandate, 20 x 2020 status, the District’s 
total per capita water use trends, 2016 water production and customer use graph, mainline leaks, and 
the water loss trends for both 12 and 24 month running averages. 

 

Water Resource Reliability 

This initiative includes conservation efforts, water supply projects, and water planning.  

Recent highlights are as follows: 

2015 SWRCB Emergency Drought Order 

 The District customers’ cumulative water saving from June to the end of February as 
compared to 2013 is 24.2% versus the SWRCB goal of 32%.  This is the full time period 
of the 2015 Emergency Order is shown on the chart titled “PWD SWRCB Emergency 
Order Water Production Status”, falls 1,229 AF short of the savings goal, puts the District 
into the 5% to 15% below goal range, and will likely result in a written warning from the 
SWRCB.  The written warnings suggest and/or recommend actions that the District has 
already taken.  Tentative information for the first few weeks of March under the 2016 
Emergency Order show an increasing water saving percentage.  Though the District’s 
water savings are less than the assigned goal, the residential per capita numbers remain 
far below neighboring districts and the South Lahontan Region - pointing to an unrealistic 
goal set by the SWRCB.   



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

3 
 

 
 

The District’s long-term conservation efforts can easily be seen in the chart titled 
“PWD 12-Month Running Average Total Per Capita Water Use.”  The current TGPCD 
is 124.  The District’s customers have actually cut their water use by nearly 44% 
from the baseline number of 220.  The “Historic R-GPCD Comparison” shows that the 
District’s customers have reached 70 GPCD in February, 2016.  This is significant as the 
District’s water rate structure allows 66 GPCD for Tier 1 (indoor) allocation. 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

4 
 

 
 
A final review of the water waste fines and appeals was completed after the February, 

2016 water service account billings.  There were over 1,300 fines issued and 178 appeals 
of fines were submitted from.  93 of the appeals resulted in suspended fines due to the 
customers’ water savings.  However, 11 of the suspensions were reversed in the final 
review due to reduced water savings.  On the other hand, 6 of the upheld and paid fines 
were refunded after the customers changed habits and increased their water savings to the 
32% requirement of the SWRCB. 
 

The SWRCB approved a new Emergency Order to cover the period from March 1, 
2016 to October 31, 2016 on February 2, 2016.  The Order is an improvement in that it 
allows adjustments to the prior conservation goals for climate, growth, and drought-

Gallons % Change Gallons % Change Gallons % Change
June 239.8 - 170.9 (28.7) 126.3 (47.3)
July 267.6 - 184.7 (31.0) 121.8 (54.5)
August 261.1 - 180.0 (31.0) 133.0 (49.0)
September 198.9 - 164.5 (17.3) 120.1 (39.6)
October 157.7 - 130.2 (17.4) 104.4 (33.8)
November 130.2 - 100.4 (22.9) 79.8 (38.7)
December 88.2 - 80.4 (8.9) 67.0 (24.0)
January 103.8 - 77.1 (25.8) 61.0 (41.2)
February 106.1 - 79.2 (25.4) 70.0 (34.0)
March 144.5 - 105.8 (26.8)
April 169.3 - 124.4 (26.5)
May 204.4 - 145.3 (28.9)
June 239.8 - 170.9 (28.7)
July 267.6 - 184.7 (31.0)
August 261.1 - 180.0 (31.0)
September 198.9 - 164.5 (17.3)
October 157.7 - 130.2 (17.4)

Averages** 180.9 136.0 (22.9) 98.2 (40.3)

Notes: * All R-GPCD Calculated using 2015 Emergency Order Method
% Change is calculated from 2007

** Months to date only

20% by 2020 12-Month Average Total GPCD Baseline = 220
2015 12-Month Average Total GPCD Goal = 198
2020 12-Month Average Total GPCD Goal = 176
Current 12-Month Average Total GPCD = 124 or 43.6% Reduction

Historic R-GPCD Comparison*
2013 2015/16Emergency Order 

Period
2007



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

5 
 

resilient water supplies.  Under the Order, the District’s goal will be changed to 28% from 
32%.  This is a more realistic goal for the District due to our long term water conservation 
efforts and would put us back in the 1% to 5% range off the goal for January, 2016. 

 
Water conservation measure violations will all be starting at the first step under the 

new Order.  New efforts will be made to educate our customers about the water 
conservation measures starting with a newsletter in March, 2016 highlighting the water 
conservation measures.  There will also be frequent efforts throughout the spring and early 
summer to continue the education effort with the goal of meeting the SWRCB reduction 
requirement.  The education will emphasize reducing outdoor water usage while also 
reassuring customers whose water use is within Tier 1, indoor allocation, that they are 
doing their part to meet the State requirement.  The following table shows the Board of 
Directors’ personal efforts and leadership: 

 
 
 

 

 

 

2016 Water Supply Information  

 The staff has also planned water resources for 2016 based on the current State Water 
Project allocation of 30% as follows.  The recent set of storms in northern California have 
greatly helped in recovering water storage in the State’s major reservoirs.  This is very 
likely to result in a further increased allocation for the State Water Project.  Today’s 
Northern Sierra Precipitation 8-Station Index shows 49.6 inches.  This is higher than the 
2014-2015 precipitation amount of 37.2 inches and is nearly the 1922-1998 average of 
50.0 inches.   
 

Average Tier 1 Emer. Order Average

(Units/Mo.) (Units/Mo.)

1 Alvarado 10 4.2 Yes ‐52.8

2 Estes 22 3.2 Yes ‐43.9

3 Henriquez 10 5.2 Yes ‐14.8

4 Mac Laren 10 9.1 Yes 78.4

5 Dino 10 4.6 Yes ‐77.3

Aver. Within 

Tier 1?

% Change 

from 2013
DirectorDivision

2015 & 2016 Emergency Drought Order Period Water Usage Status of PWD Directors

Tier 1 Comparison



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

6 
 

 

 

 Water and Energy Resources staff has prepared a plan and projections for 2016 that 
incorporate the anticipated water usage.  The following graph shows January and February 
actual amounts and monthly projections for both production and consumption based on 
the prior five years of actual monthly information. 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

7 
 

 
 

 

Other Items 

 The Littlerock Reservoir Sediment Removal Project Draft Environmental Impact 
Report/Environmental Impact Statement (EIR/EIS) is nearly approved by the United 
States Forest Service (USFS) to releasing for public review.  A presentation will be made 
to the Board when it is released. 
 

 The public review of the Draft California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) EIR for the 
Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project is complete and the 
comments received are being reviewed and addressed.  The Preliminary Design Report 
and the Title 22 Report have been prepared and submitted to the appropriate agencies for 
review.  The Blue-Ribbon panel had another meeting to discuss the project and will meet 
again soon.  Also, Assistant General Manager Knudson and Kennedy/Jenks gave a well-
received presentation of the Project at this week’s WateReuse Conference. 
 

 Kennedy/Jenks and staff are currently preparing the 2015 Urban Water Management Plan. 
The deadline for submitting the report is currently June 30, 2016. 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

8 
 

 

Organizational Excellence 

 This initiative includes efforts to restructure staff duties and activities to more efficiently 
provide service to our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The transition to electronic time keeping is nearing completion and is planned to be fully 
used in the second quarter of 2016. 
 

 Regular small group meetings with management were started and will continue on a 
regular basis to follow-up on the 2015 Cultural Survey. 
 

 The 2016 Strategic Plan Update was approved by the Board at the January 13, 2016 
meeting. 

 
 

 

Systems Efficiency 

 This initiative largely focuses on the state of the District’s infrastructure.  Recent highlights 

are as follows: 

 Installation of the long awaited security upgrades for the headquarters and maintenance 
areas is nearing completion. 

 
 New water main replacement projects are under design within the funds available in the 

2016 Budget to continue the District’s efforts to maintain the water system.  The effects 
of the District’s past efforts in replacing failing water mains can be seen in the reduced 
number of mainline leaks.  This is illustrated in the chart titled “Mainline Leak History.”  
The total for 2015 is slightly above, 133 vs. 106, the numbers for 2006.  This is a vast 
improvement from 2010’s number of 781 mainline leaks.  2016 is off to a good start with 
a total of 12 mainline leaks for January and February. 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

9 
 

 
 

 The effect of both water main and water meter replacement is shown on the chart titled 
“PWD Water Loss History.”  It has been adjusted to reflect the District’s water production 
and consumption separate from the water treated on behalf of AVEK.  The percentage of 
unaccounted water or water loss is stabilized. 

 

 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT       March 16, 2016 

 

10 
 

Financial Health and Stability 

 The 2016 Budget was approved by the Board of Directors. 

 Engineering staff has successfully applied for planning grant funding for the Palmdale 
Regional Groundwater Recharge and Recovery Project and for the Phase II pipeline for 
the Palmdale Recycled Water Authority. 

 The field work of the District’s auditor is being done this week. 
 
  

Regional Leadership 

 This initiative includes efforts to involve the community, be involved in regional activities, 
and be a resource for other agencies in the area.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The Palmdale Recycled Water Authority (PRWA) met in February.  Topics of action 
included compensation for the public Board member and the 2016 Budget. 

 
 Meetings were also held with the Antelope Valley State Water Contractors Association 

and with staff of other agencies. 
 

 A third meeting of the Antelope Valley Watermaster Board was held this week to assist 
the overlying producers in selecting their Board members.  Additional meetings, if 
needed, will be held on March 31 and in April at PWD.  The Public Water Suppliers have 
selected Leo Thibault to be our representative. 
 

 Customer Care and Advocacy 

 This initiative includes efforts to better serve our customers.  Recent highlights are as follows: 

 The lobby kiosk is continuing to give customers another choice for making a payment at 
the District office.  Despite some minor problems, it has continued to take increasing 
amounts of customer payments.   
 

 The ability for customers to make payments at 7-Eleven is being setup for the customer’s 
ability to make cash payments at those stores. 
 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
PALMDALE WATER DISTRICT  March 16, 2016 

11 

 The Customer Care Department is continuing to define its role and find ways to better
help customers.  An advanced training in customer care was recently held.  It is a portion
of the requirements needed for staff to advance to Customer Care II positions.

 The work area for the Customer Care staff was rearranged over the Presidents’ Day
weekend.  The counter area was later worked on and is nearly complete.  Additional panels
are needed to complete the workstations and is on this agenda for the Board’s
consideration.

 The Customer Care Supervisor position is now posted for internal candidates pursuant to
the Board’s approval of the job description and salary at the March 9, 2016 meeting.




	AgendaRegular3-23-16
	Item5.1
	Item5.2
	Item5.3
	160323 - PWD Board Meeting.pdf
	Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery Project�Progress Update
	Presentation Agenda
	Water Supplies
	Long-term Water Supply Strategy
	Achieve Multiple Benefits
	Palmdale Regional Groundwater Recharge & Recovery
	Favorable Conditions
	Water Supply Projection
	Project Schematic
	Phasing Summary
	Facilities Map
	Diluent Sources of Water
	Recharge Schedule
	Achieving Removal/Inactivation Credits 
	Facility Sizes
	Project Schedule
	2016-2017 Work Plan
	What’s Worked
	Interesting Challenges
	Multiple Benefits
	Slide Number 21


	Item6.1
	Item6.2
	Item6.3
	Item6.4
	Item6.5
	Item6.6
	Item6.7
	Item7.1
	Item7.2
	Item8.1
	Item8.2



